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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of
Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited (hereinafter referred to
as “the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2021, and the statement of profit
and loss (including other comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of the
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the financial
statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2021, and loss and other comprehensive income,
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in aceordance with the Standards on Auditing (8As) specificd under seutivi 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with
tic clucal requienients (hul wie relevant w our audlt of the flnanclal statenents under Lthe provisions ol Lhe
Actand the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements,

Koy Awlit Mindivan

Key andit matters (‘KAM®) are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the currentperiod. These matters were addressed
in the context of our audit ol the financial statements as a whofe, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key audit matter
Revenue Recognition

See Note 20 to the financial statements

The Company has recognized revenue of INR 975
million (2020: INR 15,383 million).

The Company’s primary source of revenue is from
sale of foods, beverages and toys from chain of quick
service restaurants (QSR) stores or through online
ordering and delivery. Revenue comprises of
numerous transactions of small amounts and relies
highly on internal process of recording, accuracy and
completeness.

We continue to assess revenue recognition as an area
of audit risk and has a significant effect on our audit
strategy and our allocation of resources. Revenue
recognition has therefore been identified as a key audit
matter.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our audit procedures included obtaining an
understanding of e business and the processes by
which revenue transactions are initiated, processed and
recorded in the gencral ledger and reported in the
financial statements. Our-audit approach was designed
to be responsive to our assessed risk of misstatement
over revenue and comprised a combination of test of
controls and substantive procedures. After obtaining an
understanding of the processes, we evaluated the design
of internal controls over revenue transactions and also
tested the effectiveness of these internal controls to form
our opinion for reliance on controls. We supplemented
our controls testing by performing relevant substantive
procedures.

Our audit work included, but was not restricted to:

e Evaluating the design and implementation of sales
transactions from beginning to through to their
recording in the general ledger for verification of
completeness of revenue. Verified revenue was
recorded accurately in the proper period.

e Testing key controls over additions to and changes
in the POS master file data at individual stores on
sample basis.

e Inview of inability 1o test dutuiated controls in the
POS system, performed manual substantive testing
ol sules as tewuided in POS and oonsequently in the
general ledger. Such testing entailed comparing
prices charged as appearing in POS sales report for
a sample period with the relevant master price lists
as approved by the designated Company personnel.

e Testing internal controls over recording of sales.
collection and custody of cash. Verified
segregation of duties and reconciliation of sales
records with bank collections.

e Verifying the three-way maich between sales as
recorded by the stores in the POS system with the
collections in the bank and the sales accounted in
the general ledger.

procedures, on sales

icant stores.
iances, if any.

e Performing analytical
performance of individually si
Engquired explanation for major
for sales and gross margins.,
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Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited

Key Audit Matters (Continued)

~

Key audit matter

Assessment of impairment of property, plant and
equipment of stores

As disclosed in Note 4 and 43 to the financial
statements, as of March 31, 2021 property, plant and
equipment (net) were INR 4,949 million (March 31,
2020: INR 5,424 million) and operating lease right-of-
use assets were INR 7,008 million (March 31, 2020:
INR 7.722 million). The Company recorded a
provision of INR 115 million towards carrying value
of property plant and equipment related to stores
closed during the year.

Company evaluates the performance of individual
stores at the end of each reporting period to evaluate
any trigger for impairment at a particular store. While
performing this analysis, Company considers factors
such as sustained operating losses being incurred by
an individual restaurant store on account of low sales,
inadequate customer footfall, local, socio-economic or
infrastructure issues, as also factors which compel
continuing operating restaurants in locations which
have a present or potential strategic locational
advantage

A significant portion of the plant and equipment can
be re-located to other stores such as kitchen
equipments, accordingly, immoveable assets such as
leasehold improvements is the primary component ol
property, plant and  eguipment which requiies
impairment evaluation.

We identified the assessment of impairment of
property, plant and equipment ol sluius as a key uudit
watter. Sukjeetive mditor judgment was required to
evaluate the forecasted cash flows to be generated by
the asset groups. specifically forecasted sales and
forecasted expenses, including the effects of the
COVID-19 pandemic as also the expected duration of
the economic downturn.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Qur audit procedures included, amongst others, the
following:

We evaluated the design and tested the operating
effectiveness of certain internal controls over the
Company’s property, plant and equipment of stores
impairment process. Evaluation includes testing of
controls relating to determination and identification
of potential indicators of impairment.

We evaluated the Company’s methodology of
using historical ~ cash flow results under
predetermined thresholds at the individual
restaurant level as a potential indicator of
impairment. We evaluated the Company’s
assessment of factors such as impact of pandemic,
local government mandated restrictions including
suspension of dine-in operations, and resulting
duration of the economic downturn on the cash
flows at the individual store level.

Inquiring and evaluating the rationality of
Company’s action plan for underperforming stores
where no impairment Wwas recorded. For
underperforming stores which were continuing to
be operated for strategic explanations, We ligulied
with the Chief Financial Ufficer the busis and
rationale behind such continuance.

We also uspessed other events and circumstances
which could have heen indicative ol 4 pulential
impairment trigger by reading management’s
development reports and related meeting minutes.

We involved valuation professionals with
specialized skills and knowledge to assess the
assumptions used in the impairment model.

We verified disclosures made in Note 45 to the
financial statements, in relation to above matter. /
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Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited
Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

Deferred tax on carry forward losses and unabsorbed
depreciation

See Note 16 to the financial statements

Our audit procedures included, amongst others, the
As at March 31, 2021, net deferred tax assets following:
recognized were INR 510 million.
Deferred tax assets include deferred tax of INR 20 ® We evaluated the design and tested the operating

million recognized on carry-forward losses and INR effectiveness of internal controls over recording of
196 million recognized on unabsorbed depreciation. and review of deferred tax at each reporting date.

e We tested the computation of the amounts
The analysis of the recoverability of such deferred tax recognized as net deferred tax assets.

assets has been identified as a key audit matter because
the assessment process involves significant auditor
Judgement. Judgement is involved in evaluating the
future profitability and the likelihood of the realization

e We evaluated company assumptions used to
determine the probability of deferred tax assets
recognized in the balance sheet will be recovered

of these assets, in particular availability of taxable through future taxable income. Our evaluation
profits in future periods to support the recognition of includes comparing future taxable income against
these assets. This requires assumptions regarding profit trends and future business plans; also
future profitability, which is inherently uncertain. compared actual results achieved with forecasts in

prior periods.

® Read and assessed the disclosure made in the
financial statements for assessing compliance with
disclosure requirements.

Other Information

The Company’s management and Board of Dircctors arc responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the
financial statements and our auditors report thereon. The Company’s annual report is expected to be made
availablc to us after the date of this audilor’s report.

Our opinion vy he fuaucial stalements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the other information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take necessary actions, as
applicable under the applicable laws and regulations.

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs, profit/loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable an
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
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Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements (Continued)

operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to‘ the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section [43(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements in place and the operating effecliveness of such controls.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures in the financial statements made by the Management and Board of
Directors.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure/and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial stat ents represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Continued)

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) is-suedmby the Central
Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. (A) Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(¢) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive
income), the statement of changes in equity and the statement ot cash tlows dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books ot account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under section 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
31 March 2021 taken on rccord by the Board of Directors, nonc of the dircctors is
disqualified as on 31 March 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section
164(2) of the Act.

(f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal fingncial controls with reference to
financial statements of the Company and the operdting effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B™.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (Continued)

(B)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2021 on its
financial position in its financial statements - Refer Note 33 to the financial statements;

ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company; and

iv.  The disclosures in the financial statements regarding holdings as well as dealings in
specified bank notes during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016
have not been made in these financial statements since they do not pertain to the financial
year ended 31 March 2021.

(C)  With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under section 197(16) of the
Act:

[n our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration
paid by the Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the
provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of
the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not
prescribed other details under Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be commented

upon by us.
Faor RS R & Associates 1.1.P
Chur igred Accouniunds
Firm’
Mumbai Partner
13 May 2021 Membership No: 100060

UDIN: 21100060AAAACB3702
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report on the financial statements
of Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2021

(Referred to in paragraph (1) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report of even date)

With reference to the Annexure A referred to in the Independent Auditors” Report to the members of the
Company on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021, we report the following:

()

(ii)

(iii)

)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

(b) The Company has a regular programmé*of physical verification of its fixed assets by which
all fixed assets are verified in a phased manner over a period of three years. In our opinion,
this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the programme, fixed assets were
physically verified during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification. 3

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the title deeds of immovable
properties included in property, plant and equipment are heé'd in the name of the Company.

The Company has conducted physical verification of inventories af'seasonable intervals during the
year and no material discrepancies were identified on such physical verification.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or other
parties cavered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘'the Act').
Accuidingly, paiagiaplis 3 (iii) (a), (b) and () of the Urder areé not appllcable i e Connpany,

It our upinivi and aveording to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
advanced any loan, given any guarantee or provided any security for loan taken by others in respect
of which provisions of Section 185 of the Act are applicable and hence not commented upon. The
Company has complied with the applicable provisions of Section 186 of the Act.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted deposits within the meaning of the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India,
provisions of Sections 73 to 76, any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed
thereunder. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1)
of the Act for any of the activities carried out by the Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (vi) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of records of the Company, amounts deducted/accrued in the books of account
in respect of undisputed statutory dues including income tax, goods and services tax, cess,
employees’ state insurance, duty of customs and other material statutory dues have been
generally regularly deposited during/the year by the Company with the appropriate
authorities, except for deposit of proféssional tax dues pertaining to employees where there
have been delays in few months.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report on the financial statements
of Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2021
(Continued)

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable
in respect of provident fund, income-tax, goods and services tax, cess, employees’ state
insurance, professional tax, duty of customs and other material statutory dues were in
arrears as at 31 March 2021 for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable except for the following:

Name of the statute Nature of dues  Amount Rs.  Period to which  Remarks
(in millions) the amount
relates
The Gujarat State Tax on Profession tax 022 2016- March 21 Unpaid on account
Professions, Trades, of pending
Callings and Employment registration in the
Act, 1976 State of Gujarat
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income-

tax, sales tax, service tax, goods and services tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value
added tax and cess as at 31 March 2021, which have not been deposited with the appropriate
authorities on account of any dispute, except for the following:

Name of the statute  Nature of the  Amount Rs. Period to which Forum where dispute

disputed dues  (in millions)* the amount is pending

relates

Bombay Sales Tax Sales tax 252 2003-04 to Commissioner of Sales
Act, 1959 2004-05 Tax (Appeal), Mumbai
Karnataka Value Sales tax 496.80 2008-09 tw High Couit ol
Added Tax, 2003 2013-14 Karnataka
Central Boods GooQS and 74.90 November 2017to  High Court of Bombay
Services Tax Act, Services tax January 2018
2017
Karnataka Value Sales tax 5.62 2016-17 Dy. Commissioner of
Added lax, Lommdroial 1uxes,
2003/CST Act, 1956 Karnataka
Maharashtra Value Sales tax 5.86 2016-17 Dy. Commissioner of
Added Tax. State Tax, Maharashtra
2002/CST Act, 1956

* Net of amount deposited under protest

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings to banks. The Company did not have any
outstanding loans or borrowings from financial institutions or government and there are no dues to
debenture holders during the year. ’

(viii)
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report on the financial statements
of Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2021
(Continued)

(ix)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or
further public offer (including debt instruments) and has not obtained any term loans during the
year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (ix) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(x) According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the
Company by its officers or employees, has been noticed or reported during the year.

(xi) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has paid/provided for managerial remuneration in
accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with
Schedule V of the Act.

(xii)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not
a Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiii)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section 177
and Section 188 of the Act, where applicable. The details of such related party transactions have
been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS).

(xiv)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement
of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xiv)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xv)  Aoccording to the information and cxplanations given (v us aud i (ie Uasis l vur exatnination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with
directors or persons connected with them. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xv) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(xvi)  The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

For BS R & Associates LLP
Ch ed Accountants
Firm’s Registration No: 11

Shabbir Readymadewala

Mumbai Partner
13 May 2021 Membership No: 100060
UDIN: 21100060AAAACB3702
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ Report on the financial statements of
Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2021

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of
our report of even date) ;

-

7

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Hardcastle
Restaurants Private Limited (“the Company™) as of 31 March 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2021,
based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (the “Guidance Note™). i
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing apd maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal controt stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and effident conduct of
its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
4ud delection of frauds and errors, the ncouracy and completeness of the acconnting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter
referred to as “the Act™).

Auditors’ Responsibility _
Out tesponsibility is (0 expiess an vpinion on the Company's internal financial contrals with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note an_d
the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonab
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
established and maintained and whether such controls operated effectively in all material respects.
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ Report on the financial statements of
Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2021
(Continued)

Auditors’ Responsibility (Continued)

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent mitations of internal tinancial controls with reference to financial statements,
inclinding the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procednres may deteriorate

For B S R & Associates LLI®
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No: 1 1W/W-100024

Mumbai Partner
13 May 2021 Membership No: 100060
UDIN: 21100060AAAACB3702
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Balance Sheet
as al March 31, 2021

(Rs. in nullions)

I ASSETS

| Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment
(b) Capital work-in-progress
(c) Right to use assets
(d) Investment property
(e) Other intangible assets
(f) Financial assets
(1) Investments
(i1) Loans
(iii)  Other financial assets
(g) Income tax assets (net)
(h) Deferred tax assets (net)
(1) Other assets

Total non-current asseis

2 Current assets
(a) Inventories
(b) Financial assets
(1) Investments
(1) Trade receivables
(i) Cash and cash equivalents

(iv) Bank balances other than (ii1) above

(v) Loans
(vi) Other financial assets
(c) Other assets

Total current assets

TOTAL ASSELS
11 EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

I EQUITY
(a) Equity share capital
(b) Other equity
Total equity

2 LIABILITIES
I Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(1) Lease labilities
(1)  Other financial liabilities
(b) Provisions
Total non-current liabilities

2 Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings
(i1) Lease liabilities
(ii) Trade payables

Total outstanding due to micro enterprises and small enterprises
Total outstanding dues other than to micro enterprises and small enterprises

(1)  Other financial liabilities
(b) Other hLabilities
(c) Provisions

Total current liabilities

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Notes

13

43
4
13

17
43
18

14
19
15

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
4,949.02 5.424.10
256.01 225.76
7.008.44 7.721.64
- 5.25
419.18 468.64
523.49 851.81
445,77 448.27
111 42,92
75.49 111.77
510.24 213.54
228.58 257.95
14417.33 15,771.65
465.29 411.36
1,366.94 646.81
87.88 47.26
95.09 26.28
1.36 1.32
23.17 16.56
37.11 63.00
167.93 104.92
2.244.77 1,317.51
16,6610 U896
1,747.63 1,747.63
2,446.23 3.434.38
4,193.86 5.182.01
6,741.72 7.044.27
2.97 1.83
40.22 25.42
6,784.91 7.071.52
2,151.83 1,837.17
786.39 777.83
64.66 13.93
1,778.14 1.257.50
549.05 669.84
289.49 205.20
63.77 74.16
5,683.33 4.835.63
16,662.10 17.089.16




Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited

Balance Sheet (Continued)
as af March 31, 2021

{Rs. in millions)
Significant accounting policies
The notes referred 1o above form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

Shiabbir Readymadewala
Partner
Membership No: 100060

Mumbai
13 May 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited

CIN: US5101MH1995PTC091422

<Qz=m»hc_=: C-&)]'\vv
Banwari Lal Jatia

Director
DIN: 00016823

Pankaj Rn%

Chief Financial Officer

Mumbai
13 May 2021

Wk

Namrata Mathu

Director
DIN: 0009059288

Radha Jain
Company Secretary
Membership No: A28006




Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited

Statement of profit and loss
for the year ended March 31, 2021

Ry nullions)

Revenue from operations
Other income
Total income

Expenses

Cost of materials consumed

Employee benefits expense

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortisation expense
Other expenses

Total expenses

(Loss) / Profit before exceptional items
Exceptional items
(Loss) before tax
Less : Tax expense
- Current tax
- Deferred tax
Total tax expense
(Loss) for the year
Other comprehensive income:
Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss :
Re-measurements of defined benefit plan
Income tax on items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss
Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Earnings per equity share :
- Basic and Diluted (in Rs.)

Significant accounting policies

22
23
24
25
26

4

27
27

)
~1

40

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

9,856.00 1547291
443.03 130.00
10,299.03 15.602.91
3.482.82 538241
1,781.89 2,192.01
845.24 808.20
1,396.42 1,383.60
4,117.85 5.755.06
11,624.22 15,521.28
(1325.19) 81.63
(41.86) 166.31
(1,283.33) (84.68)
4.29 129.33
(297.40) (143.55)
(293.11) (14.22)
(990.22) (70.46)
277 (13.37)
(0.70) 337
207 (10.00)
(988.15) (80.46)
(566.61) (40.32)




Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited

Statement of profit and loss (Continued)
for the yeor ended March 31, 2021

(. in millions)

Significant accounting policies
“The ntes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

S R & Associates 1

red Aveounten,

Parmer
Membership No: 100060

Mumbai
13 May 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Dircctors of

Hardeastle Restaurants Private Limited <
CIN: USS101MHIS9SPTC091422 W
Luu Ceryp- j

Banwari Lal Jatia Namrata Mathur
Director Director
DIN: 00016823 DIN: 0009059288

§ o
Pankaj Roongta Radha Jain
Chief Finuncial Officer Company Secretury

Membership No: A28006

Mumbai
13 May 2021




Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited

Statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 31 March 2021

(Rs. in milltons)

(2)  Equity share capital

Particulars Note Amount
Balance as at Apnl 1, 2019 13 1,747.63
Changes 1n equity share capital during 2019-20 -
|Balance as at March 31, 2020 1,747 63
Changes in equity share capital during 2020-21 -
Balance as at March 31, 2021 1,747.63
(b)  Other equity
for the year ended March 31, 2020
Paruculars Equity Reserves and Surplus Total
contnibution
Securities Retained
premium reserve earnings
Balance at the Apnil 1, 2019 2,784.02 4,03237 (3.308 86) 3,507.53
(Loss) for the year ended March 31, 2020 - (70.46) (70.46)
Other comprehensive income - - (1000) (10.00)
Re-measurements of employee stock option cost at fair value 731 - - 731
Balance as at March 31, 2020 2,791.33 4,03237 (3,389.32) 3,434 38
for the year ended March 31, 2021
Particulars Equity Reserves and Surplus Total
contribution
Securities Retained
r""mil"“ reserve o1min|]r
Balance at the April 1,2020 2,791.33 4,032.37 (3.389.32) 3.434.38
(Loss) for the year ended March 31, 2021 - - {990.22) (990.22)
Other comprehensive income - - 2.07 2.07
Balance as at March 31, 2021 2,791.33 4,032.37 (4,377.47) 2,446.23




[Hardcastle Restaurants Private [imited

Statement of changes in equity (Continued)
for ihe year ended 31 March 2021

(Rs. in millions)
(b) Other equity (Contined)
Nature and purpose of reserves:

Equity contribation :

Equity contribution consists of fair valuation of long term borrowings and cumulative redecmable preference shares received from parent

Securitics premium reserve:

Securities premium reserve is used 10 record the premium received on issue of shares by the Company. The reserve can be utilised in accordance
with the provision of Section $2(2) of Companies Act, 2013, {

Retained carnings:

The cumulative gain or loss arising from operations which 15 retained

by the Company is recognised and sccumulated under the heading of retained

carnings. At the end of the year, the profit / (loss) after tax is transferred from the statement of profit and loss to the rctained camings account.
Retamed camings includes re-measurement loss/{gain) on defined benefit plans, net of taxes that will not be reclassified to statement of profit and

loss

Significant accounting policies

The notes referved to above form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

hhir Readymwdonwnln
Parmer
Membership No. 100060

Mumhai
13 May 2021

For and on hehslf of the Board of Directors of
Hardeastle Restaurants Private Limited
CIN: U5510IMH1995PTC091422

f\a\.\«w&”q i

g Namrata Mathur

-L;fkicx@ lemg

Banwar Lal Jatia
Director Director
DIN: 00016823 DIN: 0009059288
5 . .
g
N Radha Jain
Pankaj Roongta Company Secretary

Chief Financial Officer Membership No: A28006

Mumbai
13 May 2021
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Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited

Statement of cash flows
for the year ended March 31, 2021

(s, in millions)

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
A, CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(Loss) before taxation (1,283.33) (84.68)
Adjustments for :
Depreciation and amortisation expense 1,396.42 1.383.60
Bad debts and write offs 4.01 11.31
Inventories written off 2.01 -
Impairment loss allowance on trade receivables 2.84 =
Property, plant and equipment written off’ 140.49 47.23
Finance cost 845.24 808.20
Employee share based payment expenses 6.42 8.63
Interest income (53.84) (28.40)
Gain on investments carried at fair value through statement of profit and loss (74.57) (89.47)
Profit on sale of investments (82.62) (8.81)
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment (1.81) -
Gain on lease modification, concession and termination (net) (240.37) -
Miscellaneous Provision written back (82.78) {43.83)
Operating profit before working capital changes 578.11 2,003.78
B Movements in working capital
(Increase) in inventories (55.94) (L41)
(Increase)/ Decrease in trade receivables (45.92) 47.43
Decrease/ (Increase) in non-current loans 54.50 (14.91)
(Increase)/ Decrease in current loans (6.00) (0.70)
Decrease/ (Increase) in other non-current financial assets 41.81 (0.98)
Decrease in other curmrent financial assets 25.85 421
(Increase) in other non current assets (18.58) (27.00)
(Hicicasc) Dovicase D utlict Lasiciie 4sseis (03.93) 3u.18
Increase in trade payables 755.72 93.61
Increase/ (Decrease) in other non-current financial liabilities 1.14 (5.26)
(Decrease)/ Increase in current other financial liabilitics 20.47 4.76
Increase in non-current provisions 14.79 1.31
(Decrease)/ Increase in current provisions (7.62) 18.77
Increase in other current liabilities (34.85) 233
Cash generated from operations 1,259.55 2,162.12
Income tax refund/ (paid) (net) 31.99 (163.07)
{59 NET CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 1,291.54 1,999.05
D CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant, equipment , intangible assets and capital work-in-progress (500.47) (1,261.18)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 9.26 2.09
Intersst ineome 1.24 13.46
Purchase of investments (1,028.59) (863.31)
Proceeds from sale of investments 793.97 1.438.79
NET CASH TISED IN INVFSTING ACTIVITIES (724.59) (670.15)

E CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds /(Repayment) of short-term borrowings (net) 331.83 (507.51)
Repayment of lease liabilitics (643.18) (737.44)
Interest paid (169.62) (151.57)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (480.97) (1.396.52)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 85.98 (67.62)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 9.11 76.73
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 95.09 9.11
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 85.98 (67.62)
—

.




Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited

Statement of cash flows (Continued)
for the year ended March 31, 2021

(s, in milfions)

For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Compaonents of cash and cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances {refer note 11) 96.45 27.60
Less ; not considered as cash and cash equivalents
Deposits with remaining maturity for less than 12 months 136 1.32
Less: Bank Overdrafis (refer note 17) - 17.17
Total cash and cash equivalents ; 95.09 9.11

Notes to Statement
1. The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the “indirect method” as set out in *Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 7 - Statement of

Cash Flows.
2. The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements.

AS per our report of even date attached

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited
CIN: US5101MH1995PTC091422

«
L{A\A G s pe W
: Banwari Lal Jatia Namrata Mathur
Partner i Director Director
Membership No: 100060 DIN: 0001 DIN: (005059288
ﬂ),l, ~ \be
sl
Pankaj Roongla i i Radha Jain
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership No: A28006
Munibai Mumbai
13 May 2021 13 May 2021




Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 March 2021
(Rs. wn mullions)

I Company background

Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited (‘the Company’) was incorporated on August 7, 1995. The Company is engaged in operating
McDonalds’ chain of restaurants in the West and South Regions of India

2 Basis of preparation
A Statement of compliance

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of Companies Act 2013, (the 'Act’) read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time and other provisions of the Act, (the "Act’) to the extent notified and
applicable as well as applicable guidance notes and pronouncements of the Institute of Chariered Accountants of India (ICAI).

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly-issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to
an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.
The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on May 13, 2021,

B * Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Rs.), which is the Company’s functional currency. All financial information
presented in Indian rupee has been rounded to the nearest million unless otherwise indicated.

C  Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following items :

Items Measurement

Certain financial assets and liabilities Fair value

Liabilities for share-based arrangements Fair value

Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability less defined Fair value of plan assets less present value of defined benefit obligations
value of present obligation

Mutual Funds and Bonds Fair value

D Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is treated as current
when it ig:

Lapectad o e avalised o intaided w be suld on consusied T noiigl operaidng eyele,
- Held primarily for the purpose of trading,
- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period.
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when it is:
Expected to be scttled in normal operating cycle,

=held nrimarily fir the imnse ol fling
- due (o be settled within twelve months afier the reporting period, or
- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period,

I he Company classifies all other labilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The
Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

E  Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind ASs. requires management to make Judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities and disclosure of contingent
liabilities on the date of balance sheet and reported amounts of revenue and expenses for the period. Although these estimates are based
on the management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results could differ from the estimates.




Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements

for the vear ended 31 March 2021

(s, in mullions)

2

Basis of preparation (Continued)

E

Use of estimates and judgements (Continued)

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions 1o accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

Assumptions and estimation uncer
Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

I'he Company reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting period. This reassessment may result
in change in future periods.

Provision for income tax and deferred tax assets

The Company uses estimates and judgement based on the relevant rulings in the areas of allowances and disallowances which is
exercised while determining the provision for income tax. A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and tax losses can be utilised. Accordingly, the
Company exercises its judgement to reassess the carrying amount of deferred 1ax assets at the end of each reporting period.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

The reliable measure of the estimates and judgments pertaining to litigations and the regulatory proceedings in the ordinary course of the
Company’s business are disclosed as contingent liabilities.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that may have a financial impact on the Company and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assessment for impairment is done at each Balance Sheet date as to whether there is any indication that a non-financial asset may be
impaired

Defined benefit

Llig CUIHpAty s Braiuity plan is 4 aenned benent plan. I he present vaiue of the detined benetit obligation 15 based on actuarial valuation
using the projected unit credit method. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual
devcluprcnts in e futwie, These include tie detenmination ol tie discount tate, fuwe salary incieases and smotality taes. Due w e
complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Measurement of fair values

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values. for both financial and non-
financial assets and liabilities. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured
using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability. assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes mto account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. The
Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. The Company engages with external
valuers for measurement of fair values in the absence of quoted prices in active markets. Significant valuation issues are reported to the
Company's audit committee.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value. maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

14th Figor,
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Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements

for the vear ended 31 March 2021

(K. in nullions)

2

3

Basis of preparation (Continued)

F

Measurement of fair values (Continued)

All assets and liabilites for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

- Level I: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level | that are observable for the asset or liability, cither directly (i.e. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible. If the mputs used to
measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is
categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire
measurement. The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during

which the change has occurred.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature.
characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above. This note summarises
accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes.

- Financial instruments (refer note 28)
- Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions (refer note 28)
- Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (refer note 28)

- Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) (refer note 28)

Significant account policies

Rumvonin eanngnition

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable, after deduction of any trade discounts, volume rebates and
oy tangg or dutign eolleeted on TiehalCol e gosenmient sl as gonnls b seaniors vas en Revmiie e oty eeapiived (Ui exiet
that it is highly piobable a significant icvcisal will ot uieur. Thie Cotlipaily 1ECOgnISEs reventie Wien it transters control over a good or
service to a customer.

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be
reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and net of 1axes or duties collected on behalf of the government,
The Company has concluded that it is the principal in all of its revenue arrangenicnts sinee it is the primary obligor in all (he revenue
anangenents uy it huy pricing latiwde and (s also exposed 1o invenlory and credil nsks.

Goods Service Tax (GST) is not received by the Company on its own account. Rather, it is tax collected on value added to the commodity
by the seller on behalf of the government. Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue.

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognised.

Sale of products
Revenue for tood items 1s recogmsed when sold to the customer over the counter. Revenue on sale of other goods is recognised when
significant risks and rewards of ownership of goods have passed to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods.




Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 March 2021

(Rs. 1 millions)

3 Significant account policies (Continued)

a

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Sale of products — customer loyalty programme (deferred revenue)

For customer loyalty programmes, the fair value of the consideration received or receivable in respect of the initial sale is allocated
between the award credits and the other components of the sale. The amount allocated to award credits is deferred and is recognised as
revenue when the award credits are redeemed and the Company has fulfilled its obligations to supply the discounted products under the
terms of the programme or when it is no longer probable that the award credits will be redeemed.

The deferred income related to loyalty credits granted has been estimated with reference to the fair value of products for which they could
be redeemed. This is because the fair value of loyalty credits is not direcily observable. The fair value of the customers' right to buy
products at a discount for which the loyalty credits can be redeemed takes into account the amount of discount available 1o customers who
have earned the loyalty credits remaining unutilised and the expected forfeiture rate.

Other operating income
Franchisee income, space rental and alliance income and conducting fees are recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with terms of
relevant agreement.

Other income

Interest income from debt instruments is recognized using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms
of the financial instrument but does not consider the expected credit losses.

Dividends are recognised in profit or loss only when the right to receive payment is established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Company, and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Property, plant and equipment

1 Tems of property. plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitaliced borrowing costs, loss ecumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase
price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly
attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing
the item and cstoning e site o which Qv is locaed. Punlien conalbudon recelved from landlords in respect ot leasenold
improvements carried out to leasehold premises is deducted from leasehold improvement cost.

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and direct labor, any other costs
directly atinibutable to bringing the item to working condition for its intended use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing
the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property. plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate
items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the
asset is derecognised.

2 Subsequent Expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will
flow to the Company.

3 Depreciation
Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual values over their estimated
useful lives using the straight-line method. and is generally recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
Frechold land is not depreciated. The building built on leasehold land is classified as building and is amortized over the lease term
or the useful life of the building, whichever is lower.
The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment for the current and comparative periods are as follows:




Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements

for the vear ended 31 March 2021

(Rs. in nullions)

3 Significant account policies (Continued)

b Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

3

Depreciation (Continued)

Assel Management estimate Useful life as per
of useful lives Schedule 1

Building 28 years 30 years

Leasehold improvements (others) 15 years -

Leasehold improvements (office) 9 years -

Restaurant Equipments 5-10 years 15 years

Office equipment S years 5 years

Furniture and fixtures 5-10 years 10 years

Computers 3 years 3 years

Vehicles 4 years 8 years

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted if appropriate. Based on
technical evaluation and consequent advice, the management believes that its estimates of useful lives as given above best represent
the period over which management expects to use these assets.

Depreciation on additions (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.c. from (up to) the date on which asset is ready for use
(disposed off).

Intangible assets
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite,

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are
carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Intangible assets with finite lives are
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic
benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes
in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and
loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, either individually or at the
cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues
to be supportable. 1f not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

AL ocdton & fieense 1ees 1oF stores opened up to May 15, 201U, are amortised on a straght line basis over a perod of twenty
yedrs. FoOr stofes openied attér May 15, 2U1U, Imtial location & hicense fees are amortised on a straight line basis over the remaming
period of the Master Franchise Agreement.

The Company also has software as an intangible asset having a useful life of 5 years.

Gains or losses arising from derccognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

¢ Investment properties

Investment pronsrty in nronerty hald aithar tn eam rental innnme ar for eapital apprecintion ar far heth bt nat far sale in the ardinar:
couise ol busiess, use i Uie pruduction ur supply ol guods o services on (o adililsaadve purposes. Investment propeny Is measured
initially at its cost, including related transaction coste and where applicahle barrowing costs Suhsequently ta initinl recognition,
investment property is measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized to the asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the expenditure will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs
are expensed when incurred. When part of an investment property is replaced. the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized.

These asset are depreciated using straight line method over their estimated useful life. Though the Company measures investment
property using cost based measurement, the fair value of investment property is disclosed in the notes.
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Significant account policies (Continued)

c

d

Investment properties (Continued)

Any gain or loss on disposal of an investment property is recognised in profit or loss.

Asset Management estimate of Useful life as per
uselul lives Schedule 11
Building 28 years 30 years
Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost of materials has been determined on first-in-first out basis
(FIFQ). Cost of inventories comprises of all cost of purchase and other cost incurred in bringing the inventories to its present location
and condition. The comparison of cost and net realizable value is made on an item by item basis. The Company periodically assesses the
mventory for obsolescence and slow moving stocks

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and selling
expenses.

Raw materials, components and other supplies held for use in the production of finished products are not written down below cost except
in cases where material prices have declined and it is estimated that the cost of the finished products will exceed their net realisable
value.

Employee benefits

Defined contribution plan

State governed Provident Fund, ESIC and Labour Welfare Fund is considered as defined contribution plan and contributions thereto are
charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year as they are incurred. There are no other obligations, other than the contribution
payable to the respective funds.

A defined contribntion plan is a past=emplayment henefit plan under which an entity paya fined sontributions and will liave 1o Tegal wi
construetive ahlivation ta pay fiurther amonnts The Company maker epacifiad monthly sontributions towards Gevernment adiinistered
provident fund scheme. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an employee benefit expense in
profitor loss in the periods during which the related services are rendered by employees. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset
to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future payments is available.

Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect
of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employces have camed in
the current and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. When
the calculation results in a potential asset for the Company, the recognised asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits
available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan (‘the asset ceiling’). In order to
calculate the present value of economic benefits, consideration is given to any minimum funding requirements.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liabihity, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding
interest) and the effect of M st wwiling (iF uny, excluding intercet), are revugnised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). The
Company determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit liahility (asset) for the periad hy applying the disconnt
rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability (asset).
taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of contributions and benefit
payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to past service (‘past
service cost’ or “past service gain’) or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in statement of profit or loss. The
Company recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.
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¢

Employce benefits (Continued)

Short-term employce benefit

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is provided. A
liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid, if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount
as aresult of past service provided by the employee, and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing on the dates of the
transactions or an average rate if the average rate approximates the actual rate on the date of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities
are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary

denominated in foreign currenci
assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency
are translated at the exchange rate on the date of the transaction. Exchange differences are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Income taxes

Income fax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in the statement of profit and loss except to the extent that it relates to an
item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax
payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be
paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, Current tax
assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to
realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

Current 1ax relating to items recogmised outside prohit or loss 1s recogmised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or
in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in Other Comprehensive Income or directly
in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax retums with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried
forward tax losses and tax credits. Deferred tax is not recognised for:

- temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be
used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore. in case of a history
of recent losses, the Company recognises a deferred tax assets only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or
there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which the deferred tax asset can be realised.
Deferred tax assets - unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised / reduced to the extent that it is
probable / no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date and are expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be
recovered or settled. The effect of changes in tax rates on deferred income tax assets and liabilities is recognized as income or expense in
the period that includes the enactment or the substantive enactment date.
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h

Provisions and contingent liabilities

The Company estimates the provisions that have present obligations as a result of past events and it is probable that outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligations. These provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and are adjusted to reflect the
current best estimates.

The Company uses significant judgements to disclose contingent liabilities. Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible
obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either
not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.
Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprises of cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-
term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash
nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments.

The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated. For the purpose of the statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdraft and book
overdraft as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management,

Earnings per share

The basic eamings per share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to owner's of the Company for the year by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during reporting period.

Diluted catnings pui shac anounts aie caleulated Uy dividing the profic atuibuiable w eguity holders of tie Conipany by tie weiglied
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on
conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares.

Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the reporting date, unless they have been issued at a later
date. In computing diluted earnings per share, only potential equity shares that are dilutive and which either reduces eamings per share or
increase loss per share are included.

Employee stock option cost

Westlife Development Limited ("WDL. or the -Holding Company") has established an employee stock option scheme ("the Scheme)
which covers certain eligible employees of the subsidiary Company i.e. Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited. During the year ended
March 31. 2021. an employee stock option plan (ESOP) was in existence. The holding company measures the cost of ESOP using the fair
value method and recovers this amount from the Company.
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3 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
m  Financial instruments

i Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit and loss
(FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue

Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at

- amortised cost;

- Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) — debt investment:
- FVOCI - equity investment; or

-FVTPL

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company changes its
business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

= the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows: and

= the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

= the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets; and

= the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of prnincipal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading. the Company may irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes i the nvestient's lan value e OC1 (designated as FVOC!T = equity invesunent). This elecdon is nade o an luvesuneni-
by- investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOC] as described above are measured at FVTPL, This includes
all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets
the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so climinates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch that would othenwvice arige.

Financinl ascete: Subsequont moasuremont and gains and lasscy

Financial assets These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any)|
at FVTPL interest or dividend income, are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets at amortised These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
cost Ihe amortised cost 1s reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains

and losses and imparrment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition

is eugaisad in pluﬁl ui luss.

Debt investments at These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income under the effective

FVOCI interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit
or loss. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCL On derecognition, gains and losses
accumulated in OCT are reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity investments at These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised as income in
FVOC1 profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the
investment. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are not reclassified to profit

or loss.

The Company does not have financial assets measured at FVOCIL
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3 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

m  Financial instruments (Continued)

il

Classification and subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial hability 1s classified as at FVTPL if it is
classified as held- for- trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are
measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in statement of profit or loss. Other
financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign
exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in statement of profit
or loss.

Derecognition

Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it
transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks
and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but retains cither all or
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not derecognised.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the modified terms are
substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised
in statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only when, the
Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends cither to settle them on a net basis or to
reahse the assel and setfle the lability simuitancously. |he legally enforcedble tght must not be cotngent on e evens ad
must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankiuptey of the Company or the
counterpury.

Impairment

Fittauicial assets (uther han at fait value). Tlhe Company asscases at cach balance sheet date whether a finonoinl nooet or o group of
financial assets is impaired. Ind AS 109 Financial Instrument requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss
allowance. The Company recognises lifetime expected losses for trade receivables. For all other financial assets, expected credit
losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month expected credit losses or at an amount equal to the life time expected credit
losses if the credit risk on the financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition. The amount of expected credit
losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is required 1o be recognised is
recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.

n  Borrowing costs
General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are
capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income eamed on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible
for capitalisation.
Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

|
|
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3 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

o Le

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases. except for short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets. The Company recognizes lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the
underlying assets.

Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease
liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised

iii

Right of Use assets

The Company's leased asset class consists of leases for office spaces and restaurants and includes leasehold land. The Company
assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether:

a) the contract involves the use of an identified asset
b) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and the Company
has the right to direct the use of the asset.

The Company recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.c.. the date the underlying asset is available
for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognized, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets. The right-of-use
assets are also subject to impairment.

The estimated useful life of the right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment. Right
of use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may
not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell
and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely
independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to
which the asset belongs.

Lease liabilities

Atthe conunercement daie of tie lease, the Company recognizes lease habilities measured at the present value of lease payments to
be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease
incentives receivable and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. Variable lease payments are recognized as
expenses in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date
in cases where the interest rate impheit in the lease 1s not readily determinable. Afier the commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount
of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes
to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment
of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption 1o its short-term leases (i.e.. those leases that have a lease term of
12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets
recognition exemption to leases of certain office equipment that are considered to be of low value. Lease payments on short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets are recognized as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Company as a lessor

Leases for which the Company is an intermediate lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Company has not transferred substantially all the risks and rewards relating to the right of use asset of the head lease to the sub-lessee
where it is an intermediate lessor and hence all leases are operating leases.

For operating leases, rental income is recognized on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
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v

Leases (Contimited)

Amendment to Ind-AS 116 Covid-19 related rent concessions

The ongoing COVID-19 pandemic led to the shutdown of malls, public places and bans on social gatherings The COVID-19 outbreak
severely impacted the quick service restaurants (QSR) sector resulting in disruption of operations. Pursuant to the pandemic, the
Company rencgotiated its leasing arrangements with lessors for a significant number of stores seeking relief in lease rentals for the
ensuing period.

On 24 July, 2020. the Ministry of Corporate Affairs notified amendment to Ind AS 116 specifying the accounting treatment for Covid 19
related rent concessions. The amendment permits lessees, as a practical expedient, to not assess whether particular rent concessions
occurring as a direct consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic are lease modifications and instead to account for those rent concessions as
if they are not lease modifications and consequently allowing lessees to account for the impact of the rent concessions in the statement of
profit and loss. The Company has elected 1o apply the practical expedient of not assessing the rent concessions as a lease modification for
rent concessions which are granted due to COVID 19 pandemic.

Accounting Pronouncements

On March 24, 2021, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") through a notification, amended Schedule 111 of the Companies Act,
2013. The amendments revise Division 1, Il and I1 of Schedule 11l and are applicable from April I, 2021. Key amendments relating to
Division 11 which relate to companies whose financial statements are required to comply with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules 2015 are:

Balance Sheet

Lease liabilities should be separately disclosed under the head *financial liabilities”. duly distinguished as current or non-current.

Certain additional disclosures in the statement of changes in equity such as changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors and
restated balances at the beginning of the current reporting period.

Specified format for disclosure of sharcholding of promoters.

Snegified formar for ageing sehedule of rmde roosivablas, trads payables, cupitul woilkcineprugicss and lianglble asser widet
development,

Ifa company has not used funds for the specific purpose for which it was horrowed from banks and financial institutions, then disclosure
of details of where it has been used.

Specific disclosure under “additional regulatory requirement’ such as compliance with approved schemes of arrangements, compliance
with number of layers of companies, title degds of immavahle nrnerty not held in name nf company, Inane and advianooe tg prematers,
dlieciots, key managerial personnel (KMP) and related parties, details of benami property held etc.

Statement of profit and loss

Additional disclosures relating to Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR). undisclosed income and crypto or virtual currency specified
under the head “additional information” in the notes forming part of the standalone financial statements.

The amendments are extensive and the Company will evaluate the same to give effect to them as required by law.

Operating segments

Uperating segments are defined as components of an enterprise for which discrete financial information is available that is evaluated
regularly by the chief operating decision maker for assessing the Company’s performance and allocating the resources based on an
analysis of various performance indicators by business segments and geographic seements
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Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at March 31, 2021

(Rs. in millions)

6 Loans
Non-current Current
Particulars As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Secunity deposits to lessors®
Unsecured, considered good 390.53 389 68 5.61 240
Credit impaired 7.00 700 -
Less: Impairment loss allowance (7.00) (7.00) -
390.53 38968 5.61 240
Security deposits to others 4744 46.52 - E
Loan to others (refer note 46) 7.80 1207 17.56 1416
Total 445.77 448 27 23.17 16 56
*Secunity deposits to lessors include Rs 39 13 nullion (March 31, 2020: Rs 37.00 million) deposit given 1o related party (refer note 32)
7 Other financial assets
Non-current Current
Particulars As at As at As at As al
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
(Unsecured, considered good)
Bank deposits with original maturity beyond 12 months 111 111 - -
Leasehold improvements contributions receivable - - 24.30 23.58
Other receivables - 41 81 12.81 39.42
Total 1.11 4292 37.11 63.00
8 Other noocets
Non-current Current
Particulars As at As at As at Asat
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
(Unsecured, considered good)
Capital advances 21.18 6913 - -
Advances other than capital advances
Prepaid expenses 7.82 28.15 133.36 6655
Advance to employees - - 0.42 232
Advance to suppliers** - - 3418 36.05
Balances with government authonities 199,58 160.67 - -
228.58 25795 167.93 104.92

** Advanee to quppliers ineludes Ra. 8.§1 millian (March 31, 2020, Rs. 0.00 willivu) advaiice given W iclaed paiy (efer

Huie 32},




Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at March 31, 2021

(Rs. in nullions)

9 Inventories
(Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)

Current
As at As at

Particulars
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Raw matenals

Food items (includes goods in transit Rs. 0.09 million (March 31, 2020 Rs. 1.15 million) 241.58 17595
Paper Products (includes goods in transit Rs. 0.02 million (March 31, 2020: Rs. 0 31 million) 8542 90.76
Toys & Premiums 84.29 8561
Stores, spares & consumables (includes goods in transit Rs. * (March 31, 2020 Rs. 0.26 million) 54,00 59.04
Total 465.29 411.36
*Amount 1s less than 5,000
For inventories secured agamst borrowings, refer note 17
Note Inventonies written off due to obsolescence Rs. 201 million (March 31, 2020° Nil). Refer note 26
10 Trade receivables
Current
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
Unsecured, considered good 87.88 4726
Credit impaired 2.84 -
Impairment loss allowance (2.84) -
Total 87.88 4726
For Trade receivables secured agaist borrowings, refer note 17
11 Cash and bank balances
Current
Asat Asat

Particulars
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020

Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks.

— On current accounts 64.05 11.03
Cash on hand 31.04 15.25
95.09 2628
Other bank balances
— Deposits with remaming maturity for less than 12 months** 1.36 1.32
Total 96.45 27.60
** includes fixed deposits with lien in favour of statutory authorities Nil (March 31, 2020: Rs. 0.04 million)
12 Income tax assets (net)
Particulars Asat As at
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
7549 111.77

Advance tax including tax deducted at source (net of provision for tax
of Rs 107 61 million (March 31, 2020: Rs. 103.32 million))

75.49 110.77




Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at March 31, 2021

(Ies. in mullions)

13 Share capital

As at As at
Mareh 31 2021 March 31 2020
Authorised
1,765,000 (March 31, 2020 - 1,765,000) equity shares of Rs 1,000 each 1,765.00 1,765.00
1,765.00 1,765 00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up
1,747,628 (March 31, 2020: 1,747,628) equity Shares of Rs. 1,000 each fully paid up 1,747.63 1,747.63
1,747.63 1,747.63

i) Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year.
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Equity shares of Rs. 1,000 each fully paid up No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
At the beginning of the year 1,747,628 1,747.63 1,747,628 1,747.63
Add - Issued during the year = = 2 =
Outstanding at the end of the year 1,747,628 1,747.63 1,747,628 1,747.63

i) Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs 1,000 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per
share. The Company declares and pay dividends in Indian rupees. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be
entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the
number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

* The Company had issued 1,345,000 Cumulative redeemable preference shares (CRPS) of Rs. 1,000 each to its holding company in earlier years
During earlier years, pursuant to the approval obtained from the holders of the CRPS, the Company has converted the CRPS into 1,345,000 equity
shares of Rs. 1,000 each,

iii) Shares held by the holding company

March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
Equity shares of Rs. 1,000 each fully paid up No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
Westlife Development Limited ( WDL) 1,747.627 1,747 A3 1747677 1,747 A3
Total 1,747,627 1,747.63 1,747,627 1,747.63
iv) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
March 31, 2021 March 31. 2020
Equity shares of Rs 1,000 each fully paid up No. of shares % Holding No. of shares % Holding
Westlife Development Limited (Holding Company) 1.747.627 99.99% 1.747.627 99.99%

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/ members and other declarations received from sharcholders regarding
beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.

The Company has not allotted any fully paid up equity shares by way of bonus shares nor has bought back any class of equity shares during the period
of 5 years immediately preceding the balance sheet date nor has issued shares for consideration other than cash.




Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

as at March 31, 2021
(Rs. i millions)

14 Other financial liabilities

Non-current Current

Particulars As at As at As at Asat

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
Security deposits 297 183 1.41 184
Liability for capital expenditure - 173.07 31422
Interest accrued - - 3.28 338
Employee related liabilities - - 365.95 34240
Loan from landlord - 5.34 8.00
Total 297 1.83 549.05 669 84

15 Provisions
Non-current Current

Particulars As at As at As at As at

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
Provision for employee benefits (refer note 31) 40.22 2542 63.77 7416
Total 40.22 2542 63.77 74.16

16 Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) (net)
Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) are as follows :
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020

Deferred tax assets
Employee benefits 4679 5157
Other expenses 28.56 40.06
ESOP amortisation at fair value 217 17
I s anvungenmisig i3L5L lus.uu
Net impact of fair valuation of security deposits 332 13.97
Excess of depreciation provided in the books over depreciation 78.19 26.67
allowable under income tax laws
‘Accumulated losses 215.89 -
Deferred tax habilities
Investment carried out at fair value {50.96) (24.71)
Net impact of fair valuation of loan given (6.14) (6.14)
Total 510.24 213.54




Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as alt March 31, 2021

(Rs. in miillions)

17

Borrowings
Current
Particulars As at As al
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
At amortised cost
Secured
Short-term loan from banks (refer note 1, 11, i1 and vi below) 1,542.01 1,190 00
Unsecured
Short-term loan from bank (refer note iv below) 609.82 630.00
Bank overdrafts (refer note 11 and v below) - 17.17
Total 2,151.83 1,837.17

i

v

The Company had availed a total facility of Rs. 1,151 million (March 31, 2020: Rs. 1,151 million) from HDFC Bank Limited and was converted
into a mutually interchangeable overdraft facility of Rs. 200 million and short term loan facility of Rs. 951 million. This facility is sanctioned for
the purpose of financing operating capital expenditure, To avail this facility, the Company has created an exclusive charge on the credit / debit
card receivables to the extent of Rs. 200 million by way of hypothecation and for balance pari-passu charge on movable fixed assets. Interest
charged at 5.00% p.a.- 9.20% p.a. (March 31, 2020: 8.50% p.a.- 8.70% p.a.) is payable monthly. The overdraft facility is repayable on demand
and short term loan facility is repayable within 180 days with a cooling period of 2 days. As at March 31, 2021 the amount outstanding in respect
of the said facility is Rs. 392.01 million (March 31, 2020: Rs. Nil).

The Company has availed a revolving short term loan facility of Rs. 2,000 million (March 31, 2020: Rs. 2,000 million) from Australia and New
Zealand Banking Group Limited (ANZ Bank) for the purpose of financing operating capital expenditure. Interest on short term loan facility is
charged at 6% p.a. to 7.65% p.a. (March 31, 2020: 7% p.a. to 8.60% p.a.). The loan is repayable within 180 days from the date of any drawdown.
Interest on overdrafi facility is charged at 5.50% p.a. to 7.25% p.a. (March 31, 2020: 7.05% pa. to 8.70% p.a.). As at March 31, 2021 the
amount outstanding in respect of the said facility is Rs. 400 million (March 31, 2020: Rs. 1,190 million) and amount outstanding in respect of the
overdraft facility was Rs. Nil (March 31, 2020: Rs. 9.23 million). To avail these short term loan and overdraft facility, the Company has created a
first pari passu charge on the movable assets.

The Company has availed a revolving short term loan facility of Rs. 600 million (March 31, 2020: Rs. 600 million) from Development Bank of
Singapore for the purpose of financing operating capital expenditure, The Company has created a first pari-nassn sharee on all stock and hook
debts. Interest is charged at 5.30% p.a. to 7.95% p.a. (March 31, 2020: 8.30% p.a. to 8.40% p.a). The loan is repayable on demand. As at March
31,2021 the amount outstanding in respect of the said facility is Rs. 350 million (March 31, 2020: Rs. Nil).

The Company hac availed a loan fasility of Ro. 750 million (Mareh 31, 2020: N3.750 willivn) with 1Cutak Maliindia Dauk Lid. whidhi is iiutually
interchangeable into short term and overdrafi facility. The short term loan facility was availed at an interest rate of 5.10% p.a. to 8.00% p.a.
(March 31, 2020: 7.05% p.a. to 8.30% p.a). This facility is for financing the working capital requirement and is repayable on demand. As at
March 31, 2021 the amount outstanding in respect of the said facility is Rs. 609.82 million (March 31. 2020: Rs. 630 million).

v The Company has also availed an overdraft facility with Kotak Mahindra Bank Ltd. at an interest rate of 8.00% p.a. - 8.10% p.a. (March 31,

2020:9.00% p.a to 9.55% p.a.). This overdrafi facility is for financing the working capital requirement and is repayable on demand. As at March
31. 2021, the Company has utilised Rs Nil. (Previous Year Rs 7.94 million) under this facility.

During the year, the Company has availed a short term loan facility of Rs.500 million (March 31, 2020: Nil) with ICICI Bank Ltd. This facility
includes an overdraft facility of Rs 100 million (March 31, 2020: Rs Nil). Interest is charged at 5.00% p.a. to 5.25% p.a (March 31, 2020: Nil).
To avail this short term loan and overdraft facility, the Company has created a first pari passu charge on all current assets and exclusive charge on
debit/credit card receivables to the extent of Rs 0.10 billion. As at March 31, 2021, the amount outstanding in respect of the short term loan
facility as at March 31, 2021 is Rs. 400 million (March 31, 2020: Rs. Nil).

=

vii During the year, the Company has availed a combined working capital facility of Rs.10 million (March 31, 2020: Nil) from IDFC First Bank Ltd.

As at March 31, 2021 the amount outstanding in respect of the said facility is Nil (March 31, 2020: Nil).

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of scheduled interest and principal repayments relating to borrowings.




Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited

Notesllo the financial statements (Continued)
as at March 31, 2021

(Rs. in muillions)

I8  Trade payables
Current
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Trade payables
Total dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note 38) 64.66 13.93
Total outstanding dues other than to micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note 32) 1,778.14 1,257.50
Total 1,842.80 1,271.43
19 Other liabilities
[Particulars Current
As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Statutory dues 85.19 92.86
Other payables (refer note 32) 204.30 11234
289.49 205.20

Total

Western
Gare




Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended March 31, 2021

(Rs. in millions)

20

21

Revenue from operations

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
Sales ( refer note 20.1 below) 9,752.52 1538343
Other operating revenue
a) Conducting fees 0.66 218
b) Franchising income 1.72 6.20
c) Scrap sales 15.46 2339
d) Space rental & alliances income 2.86 1388
e) Miscellaneous provisions written back 8278 4383
Total 9,856.00 1547291
20.1 Details of sales
Food 7,176.83 10,279 65
Beverages, Desserts, Others 2,575.69 5,103.78
Total 9,752.52 15,383.43
a) For revenue from sale of products, the reconciliation of contract price to revenue from sale of products is as below:
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Contract price 9,752.52 15383 43
Less : Trade discount, volume rebates etc - -
9,752.52 15383.43

Impact of COVID-19

While: the Company helieves strongly that it hae a rich portfolio of producte and cervice offering to be made available to the sustomers threugh various

channels, future revenue streams could get impacted on account of;

a) Prolonged lockdown situation resulting in inability to start restaurant operations at different locations due to restrictions in mobility.

b) Customers not being in a position to have dine-out experience, customer can, place order through delivery platform

c) Customers postponing their discretionary spend due to change in priorities.

However the impact assessment of COVID-19 is a continuing process given the uncertainties associated with the nature and duration,

Other income

Particulars

Interest income at amortised cost

- Bank deposits

- Interest on investment

- Others

Profit on sale of investments

Gain on investments carried at fair value through statement of profit and loss
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment

(Gain on lease modification, concession and termination (net)

Miscellaneous income

Total

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
0.04 0.21
120

5260 2819
82.62 881
74,57 RO 47

1.81 -

230.19 -
- 332
443.03 13000




Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

for the year ended March 31, 2021

(Rs. in millions)

22

23

24

Cost of materials consumed

Particulars

Inventory at the beginning of the year
Add: Purchases during the year

Less: Inventory at end of the vear
Total

22.1 - Details of cost of materials consumed
Food

Paper

Toys & Premiums

Total

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
458.43 38152
3.435.68 545932
3.894.11 584084
(411.29) (458.43)
3.482.82 538241
3,038.63 4,70699

408.31 600 64

35.88 7478

3,482.82 538241

Employee benefits expense

Particulars

Salaries, wages and bonus

Employee stock compensation expense (refer note 39)
Gratuity (refer note 31)
Staff welfare expenses

Total

Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 31)

For the year ended
March 31,2021

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

1,516.69 181396
136.04 17590
6.42 863
23.59 18.71
99.15 17481
1,781.89 2,192.01

Finance cost

Particulars

Inierest on

- Borrowings at amortised cost

- Leases ( refer note 43)

- Bank overdraft at amortised cost
- Others

Bank charges

Total

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
157.87 14230
675.71 65965
6.04 386
0.61
501 239
845.24 808.20

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Particulars #

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Depreciation on ROU assets {refer note 43)
Depreciation on investment properties
Amortisation of intangible assets

Total

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
799.79 801 46

528.82 31814

= 066

67.81 63.34

1,396.42 1,383.60

# Refer Note 4 and 43

-—

-



Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended March 31, 2021
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26 Other expenses

Particulars

Electnicity utilities

Gas utilities

Other utilities

Conducting charges

Logstics service charges

Marketing and promotions

Royalty fee

Maintenance & repairs - restaurant equipments
Maintenance & repairs - others

Operating supplies at stores

Travelling and conveyance

Legal and professional fees (refer note 26.1 below)
Rent

Bad debts and write offs

Inventories wntten off

Impairment loss allowance on trade receivables
Property, plant and equipment written off (refer note 45)
Training and development expenses
Communication costs

Rates & taxes

Insurance

Exchange differences (net)

Miscellaneous expenses

Total
Note 26.1:

Payment to auditors
A anditor

Audit fues

In other capacity
{ertihicatinn marters

Reimburaamant af supansss

Total

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
637.65 98245
95.39 157.02
4047 61.62
367.19 660 80
92.22 14325
447.94 744 60
447.61 706.00
150.83 271.60
259.40 23131
14147 189.04
22.30 69.12
124.05 13498
69.14 58.15
4.01 1131
2.01 -
2.84 -
140.49 4723
295 3812
44.39 49.97
17.52 29.36
15.97 14.11
0.10 1.14
991.91 1,153.88
4,117.85 5,755.06
4.94 b.is
0.0 0.03
030 G613
527 6.40
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27 Tax expense

A

Amount recognised in statement of profit and loss

Income tax related to items recognised in Other Comprehensive Income during the vear
Re-measurements of defined benefit plan

Total income tax recognised in otlier comprehensive income

Particulars For the year ended March For the year ended
31,2021 March 31, 2020
() Current tax
Current yvear - 12933
Prior years 4.29 =
(b) Deferred tax charge / (credit)
Attributable to:
Employee benefits 6.53 13.58
Other expenses 11.50 (30.71)
ESOP amortisation at fair value* - -
Leasc arrangements (84.92) (108.01)
Net impact of fair valuation of sccunity deposits 10.65 958
Excess of depreciation provided in the books over depreciation allowable under (51.52) (47.71)
mcome tax laws
A lated losses and bsorbed depreciation (215.89) -
Investment carried out at fair valuc 26.25 21.67
Net impact of fair valuation of loan given* - (1.96)
Net deferred tax credit (297.40) (143.55)
Total tax (credit) (293.11) (14.22)
* Denoles amount less than Rs 5,000
Amount recognised in other comprehensive income
Particulars For the year ended March For the year ended

H, 2021 March 31 2020)
(0.70) 337
(0.70) 3.37

Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit multiplied by India's domestic tax rate :

Particulars

(Loss) before tax

Applicable mcome tax rate (refer note below)
Expected income tax expense (a)

Effeets of:

Non-deductible expenses

Minimum Bonus

Provision for writc ofl

Othirn
Adivetmant r
Sub-total (b)

[LEER Y T

Total charge as per statement of profit and loss (a) + (b)

Fur the yvar unded Margh

Ferthe venr sndud|

31,2021 March 31, 2020,
(1.283.33) (84.68)]
25.17% 25.17%
(323.01) (21.31)
1149 .
738 5
(DR PR
L1
29.90 7.09
1
(293.11) (14.22)]

Note:

During the year ended March 31. 2020. the Company had clected to exercise the option 10 pay income Lax at a concessional rate. as permitted under scction 115BAA of the Income tax act.

1961

~~ 141h Flgor,
Cealral B Wing and
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D Movement in temporary differences

Particulars Balance as at April Recognised in Recognised in OCI Utilisation Balance as at March
01, 2020 profit or loss during 31,2021
during 2020-21
2020-21
Employee benefits 53.52 16.53) (0.70) 46.29
(Other expenses 40.06 (11.50) - - 28.56
ESOP amortisation at fair value 217 - - - 217
Lcasc arrangements 108.00 8492 - 19292
Net impact of farr valuation of sccunty deposits 13.97 (10.65) - i3
Excess of depreciation provided in the books over 26,67 5152 - - 78.19
depreciation allowable under income tax laws
Accumulated losses and unabsorbed depreciation - 215.89 - - 215.89
Investment carricd out at fair value 2471 (26.25) - - (50.96)
Net impact of fair valuation of loan given (6.14) - - - (6.14)]
Total 213.54 297.40 (0.70) - 510.24
Particulars Balance as at April  Recognised inprofit ~ Recognised in OCI Utilisation  Balance as at March 31,
01, 2019 or loss during during 2019-20 2020,
2019-20
Employvee benefits 63.73 (13.58) 337 - 53.52
Other expenscs 9235 3071 - - 40.06
ESOP amortisation at fair value 217 - - - 217
Lease arrangements - 108.00 - - 108.00
Net impact of fair valuation of sccurity deposits and loan 1545 (7.62) - - 783
given
Excess of depreciation provided in the books over 21.04) 47.71 - - 26.67
depreciation allowable under income tax laws
Investment carried out at fair value (3.04) 21.67) - - (24.71)
[ Total 66.62 14355 337 - 213.54

14th Floor,

Central B Wing and
Korth C Wing,
Hesco IT Parkd

Gorega
uarg 063

Mumbai - 400 063
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28 Fair value measurement

a  Financial instruments by category

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as of March 31, 2021 were as follows:

(Particulars Amortised cost  Fair Value Through  Total carrying value
Profit or Loss
Assels:
Cash and cash equivalents 95.09 - 95.09
Bank balances other than above 1.36 - 1.36
Investments - 1,890.43 1,890.43
Trade receivables 87.88 - 87.88
Loans 468.94 - 468.94
Other financial assets 38.22 - 3822
Total 691.49 1,890.43 2,581.92
Liabilities:
Borrowings 2,151.83 - 2,151.83
Lease Liabilities 7,528.11 - 7,528.11
Trade payables 1,842.80 - 1,842.80
Other financial liabilities 552.02 - 552.02
Total 12,074.76 - 12,074.76
The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as of March 31, 2020 were as follows:
Particulars Amortised cost Fair Value Through  Total carrying value
Profit or Loss
Assels:
Cash and cash equivalents 26.28 2628
Bank balances other than above 132 - 132
Investments - 1,498.62 1,498 62
Trade receivables 47.26 - 47.26
Loans 464.83 - 464 83
Other financial assets 105.92 - 10592
Total 645 61 1,498.62 2,144.23
Liabilities:
Borrowings 183717 1,837.17
Lease Liabilities 7,822.10 - 7.822.10
Trade payables 1,271.43 - 1,271.43
Other financial liabilines 671.67 - 671.67
Total 11,602.37 - 11,602.37

Carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, other financial assets and trade payables as at March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 approximate
the fair value. Fair value measurement of lease liabilities is not required.
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28

Fair value measurement (Continued)

b

Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgement and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are

a) recognised and measured at fair value.
b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements.

To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial
instruments into three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level is mentioned below

Level I - Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed equity instruments,
traded bonds and mutual funds that have quoted price. The fair value of all equity instruments (including bonds) which are traded in
the stock exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the reporting period. The mutual funds are valued using the closing NAV,

Level 2 - The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, traded bonds, over-the counter
derivatives) is determined using valuation techmques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible
on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in
level 2.

Level 3 - If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This is
the case for unlisted equity securitics, contingent consideration and indemnification asset included in level 3.

The following table presents fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilitics measured at fair value on a recurring basis :

Particulars As at  Fair value measurement at end of the reporting year
March 31, 2021
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets
Investments in mutual funds 1,191.44 1,191.44 - -
Investments in bonds 698.99 698.99 - -
Particulats Asat Fair value measurement at end ot the reporting year
March 31, 2020
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets
Investments in mutual funds 959.50 959.50 - -
Investments in bonds 539.12 539.12 - -

Measurement of fair values

I'he tollowing tables show the valuation techniques used in measuring Level 1 fair values, for financial instruments measured at fair
vdlug lin Uie stdieiieing o1 indncidl posiion.

Financial instruments measured at fair value

Type Valuation technique

Investment in mutual funds and corporate bonds The fair values of investments in units of mutual fund and corporate bonds are
based on the Net Asset Value [NAV] as stated by their issuer in the published
statements as at Balance Sheet date. NAV represents the price at which the
issuer will issue further units of mutual funds and corporate bonds and the
price at which issuers will redeem such units from the investors.

There have been no transfers between Level 1. Level 2 and Level 3 for the years ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020,

14th Fioor,
B Wing and
C Wing
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29 Financial risk management
Financial risk

In the course of its business, the Company is exposed to a number of financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk . This note
presents the Company’s objectives, policies and processes for managing its financial risk and capital. The key risks and mitigating actions
are also placed before the Board of Directors of the Company. The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and
analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk
management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities.

The Company manages the risk through the finance department that ensures that the Company’s financial nisk activities are governed by
appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s
policies and risk objectives. The activities are designed to:

- protect the Company’s financial results and position from financial risks

- maintain market risks within acceptable parameters, while optimising returns; and

- protect the Company’s financial investments, while maximising returns.

A Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Company.
Credit risk arises on liquid assets, financial assets, trade and other receivables.
In respect of its investments the Company aims to minimize its financial credit risk through the application of risk management
policies.

Trade receivables are subject to credit limits, controls and approval processes. Basis the historical experience, the risk of default in
case of trade receivable is low. Provision is made for doubtful receivables on individual basis depending on the customer ageing,
customer category, specific credit circumstances and the historical experience of the company.

The Company has trade receivables amounting to Rs. 87.88 millions as at March 31, 2021 (March 31, 2020 - Rs. 47.26 millions).
There are no significant amounts due by more than 180 days and not provided for. Management believes that these are still
callectible in full. hased on historieal navment hehavionr and extensive analysis of enstomer eredit risk

The Company also has an exposure in respect of other financial assets, viz; cash and cash equivalents, fixed deposits with banks,
loans, security deposits and others.

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents (including bank balances, fixed deposits and margin money with banks) is limited as the
Company generally transacts with banks and financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned by interational and domestic
credit rating agencies.

Security deposits are interest free deposits given by the Company primarily for properties taken on lease. Provision is taken on a case
to case basis depending on circumstances with respect to non recoverability of the amount.
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29 Financial risk management (Continued)

A

Credit risk (Continued)

Amount
As at March 31, 2021 506.05
As at March 31, 2020 569.64

(Refer note 6)

Loans, security deposits and other receivables:

Expected credit loss for loans, security deposits and other receivable

Particulars Year Ended  Asset Company Gross  Expected Expected Carrying|
carrying probability  credit losses  amount, net of]
amount  of default impairment
provision|
Loss allowance measured at ~ Financial assets 3/31/2021 Loans 25.36 0% - 25.36
12 i I I a
month expected credit l'or-whu:h credit Skcitity 44358 0% . 443.58
loss risk has not :
P Deposits
increased
significantly since Leasehold 24,30 0% - 24,30
initial recognition improvements
contributions
Other 12.81 0% - 12.81
receivable
Loss allowance measured at ~ Financial assets 3/31/2020 Loans 26.23 0% - 26.23
12 month expected credit for which credit
loss risk has not Security 438.60 0% - 438.60
increased Deposits
significantly since Leaschold 23.58 0% - 23.58
initial recognition improvements
contributions
Other 81.23 0% - 81.23
receivable

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables is as follows:

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Balance as at April 1 - -
Loss allowance 2.84 -

Balance as at March 31 2.84 -
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29 Financial risk management (Continued)

B Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities
that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company's corporate treasury department is responsible for liquidity
and funding. In addition, processes and policies related to such risks are overseen by senior management.
The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are
due without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation.
The Company is able to maintain the liquidity through sales realised across all the restaurants and use of bank overdrafts and bank

loans

Maturity patterns of financial liabilities

As at 31 March 2021 Carrying Amount Less than 1 Iyear-2 2yearsto3 3 yearsand Total
year years years above

Borrowings 2,151.83 2,151.83 - - - 2,151.83

Trade payables 1,842.80 1,842.80 - - - 1,842.80

Lease liabilities 7,528.11 779.39 790,66 819.28 13,065.75 15,455.08

(refer note 43(iv))

Other financial liabilities 552,02 549.05 2,97 - - 552.02

Total 12,074.76 5,323.08 793.63 819.28 13,065.75 20,001.73

As at 31 March 2020 Carrying Amount  Less than 1 years | year-2years 2yearsto3 3 years and Total

vears above

Borrowings 1,837.17 1,837.17 - - - 1,837.17

Trade payables 1,271.43 1,271.43 - - - 1,271.43

Lease liabilities 7,822.10 811.04 799.84 81443 13,936.92 16,362.23

(rofer note 13 (iv))

Uther financial habilires 671.67 669,84 1.83 - - 671.67

Total 11,602.37 4,589.48 801.67 81443 13,936.92 20,142.50

C Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices, will affect the
Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and
conml marken sk gxposires within acesprahle paramerers, while aptimising the retim

1) Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange
rates. The Company's exposure to any currency risk is provided in the table below. The currencies in which the transactions are

denominated is Indian Rupees.

Particulars As at As at|
March 31, March31.
2021 2020
Advances recoverable in cash / kind Nil (March - 2.01
31,2020: 0.03 USD million @ Rs.75.38)
g
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29 Financial risk management (Continued)

L& Market risk (Continued)

1i) Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. The Company’s interest rate risk arises from bank borrowings and overdrafts with variable rates and also
interest on deposits with banks.
The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on exposure to interest rate with floating rates. The analysis is prepared
assuming the amount of borrowings and deposits with banks that are outstanding at the end of the reporting period, was outstanding
for the whole year. The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of
borrowings and deposits with banks affected. With all other variables held constant, the Company’s loss before tax is affected
through the impact on floating rate are as follows:

Effect on loss before tax
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020

Increase / decrease in
150 basis points 32.28 27.56

iii) Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices. The Company's investment in mutual funds and corporate bonds is exposed to pricing risk. Other financial instruments held
by the company does not possess any risk associated with trading. An increase of 5 percent in Net Assets Value (NAV) of mutual
funds and corporate bonds would decrease the loss before tax by approximately Rs 94.52 million (March 31, 2019 - Rs 74.93 million
). A similar percentage decrease would have resulted equivalent opposite impact.

30 Capital management

the Campany’s abyestive for sapital management i to amaiimia danadiolde salie, sifgomd Gusingss continuity wid suppont i gowdlool
the Company. The Company determines the capital requirement based on annual operating plans and long-term and other strategic
investment plans. The funding requirements are met through loans and operating cash flows generated. The Company is not subject to any
externally imposed capital requirements.

The Company monitors capital using a ratio of 'net debt' to "equity’. For this purpose, net debt is defined as total interest bearing loans and
borrowings less cash and cash equivalents. Equity comprises all components of equity. The Company's debt to equity ratio as at March 31,
2021 and March 31, 2020 was as follows :

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Total borrowings 2,151.83 1.837.17
Less : Cash and cash equivalents 95.09 26.28
Net debt 2,056.74 1,810.89
Equity 4,193.86 5,182.01
Debt to equity ratio 0.49 0.33

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial
covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial
covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any
interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current year.
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31 Disclosure under Indian Accounting Standard 19 (Ind AS 19) on employee benefits:

a) Defined contribution plan:

Amount recognised and included in note 23 “Contribution to provident and other funds” represents

Particulars

Provident fund
Employees State Insurance Scheme (ESIC)
Labour welfare find

Total

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
108.14 136.41
27.52 39.00
0.38 049
136.04 175.90

b) Defined benefit plan:

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure at
15 days salary for each completed year of service subject to a maximum of Rs. 2 million. The Scheme is funded with Life Insurance Corporation

in the form of a qualifying insurance policy.

(i) Gratuity: The Company has charged the gratuity expense to statement of profit and loss based on the actuarial valuation of gratuity liability
at the end of the year. The assumptions considered in the projected unit credit method used to compute the gratuity liability are as under:

Assumptions As at As at
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
Expected rate of return on plan assets 5.18% 5.45%
Discount rate 5.18% 5.45%
Salary escalation 6.50% 6.50%
Atirition rate :
Crew 30.00% 30.00%
Others 12.00% 12.00%
Average expected future service 3 years 3 years
Retirement age 58 years 58 years
Morality rate during employment as per Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2006-08).
(i) Table showing change in present value of Projected Renefit Ohligation:
Particulars Av at g at
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
Present value of projected benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 109.45 88.74
Interest cost 5.97 6.00
Current service cost 18.16 1333
Past service cost - -
Benefits paid directly by employer - =
Benefits paid from fund (14.88) (10.39)
Actuanal (gains)/losses on obligations - due to change in demographic assumpuions = =
Actuaral (gans)/losses on obligations - due to change in financial assumptions 1.57 7.21
Actuarial losses on obligations - due to experience (5.49) 4.56
Present value of projected benefit obligation at the end of the year 114.78 109.45
(iii) Tables of fair value of plan assets:
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020/
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 9.87 9.23
Interest income 0.54 062
Contributions by employer 16.41 12.00
Benefits paid (14.88) {10.38),
Expected return on plan assets, excluding interest income (1.15) (1.60)
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 10.79 9.87
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31 Disclosure under Indian Accounting Standard 19 (Ind AS 19) on employee benefits (Continued )

b) Defined benefit plan: (Continued)

(iv)  Amount recognised in the balance sheet
Particulars Asat As at|
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020|
Present value of benefit obligation at the end of the year (114.78) (109.45)
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 10.79 9.87
Funded status (surplus/(deficit)) (103.99) (99.58)
Net (liability) / asset disclosed in the balance sheet (103.99) (99.58)
{v) Netinterest cost for the year
Particulars As al As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020|
Present value of projected benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 109.45 88.74
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year (9.87) (9.24)|
Net liability/ (assets) at the beginning of the year 99.58 79.50
Interest cost 597 6.00
Interest income (0.54) (0.62)
Net interest cost for current year 543 538
(vi) Expenses recognised in the sta of profit & loss for the year
=z
Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
Current service cost 18.16 1333
Net interest cost 543 538
Past service cost » .
Expenses recognised in the statement of profit & loss 23.59 18.71
(vii) Expenses recognised in the other comprehensive income
Particulars 2020-21 20'9-?3'
Actuanial (gain) / loss on obligation for the year (3.92) 11.77
Return on plan assets, excluding interest income 115 1.60
Net (income)/expense for the year recognized in OCI (2.77) 13.37
(viii) Balance Sheet reconciliation
Partienlars Asat As at]
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2U2U)
Opening net liability 99.58 7950
Fypanrar rn«nunnnri m o eintamant nl"rrn"" or lome 13,1 10.71
Expenses recognized in OCI (2.77) 13.37
Benefits paid directly by employer - -
Employers contribution (16.41) (12.00)
Amount recognised in the balance sheet 103.99 99 58
(ix) Category of assets
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Insurer managed funds 10,79 9.87
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31 Disclosure under Indian Accounting Standard 19 (Ind AS 19) on employee benefits (Continued )

b) Defined benefit plan: (Continued)

(x)  Other details

Particulars Asat As al
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Expected contribution in the next year 63.77 7416
Weighted average duration of the projected benefit obligation 6 years 7 years
(xi) Maturity analysis of the benefits payments - from the fund
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020|
Projected benefits payable in future years from the date of reporting
1st following year 14.51 1284
2nd following year 16.61 13.12
3rd following year 14.03 14.77
4th following year 14.67 1234
5th following year 12.88 1260
Sum of years 6 10 10 40.02 4182
Sum of years 11 and above 45,53 4902
(xii) Sensitivity analysis
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
Projected benefit oblig: on current p 114.78 109.45
Delta effect of +1% change in the rate of discounting (5.58) (5.60)
Delta effect of -1% change in the rate of discounting 6.27 6.30
Delta effect of +1% change in the rate of salary increase 5.60 557
Delta effect of -1% change in the rate of salary inerease (515) (511)
Delta effect of +1% change in the rate of employee turnover (0.95) 088
Delta effect of -1% change in the rate of employee turnover 1.01 093

The sensitivity analysis have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of
the reporting period , while holding all other assumptions constant.

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the projected benefit obligation as it unlikely that
the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.
Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the projected unit obligation has been calculated using the

projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same method as applied in calculating the projected benefit
obligation as recognised in the balance sheet.

There is no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.

(xiii) Risk exposure

These defined benefit plans typically expose the Company to actuarial risks as under:
a) Investment risk
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by reference to market yields

at the end of the reporting period on government bonds.

b) Interest rate risk
A decrease in bond interest rate will increase the plan liability. However, this shall be partially off-set by increase in return as per debt

investments.

¢) Longevity risk

The present value of the defined plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants. An increase
in the life expectancy will increase the plan's liability

> d) Salary.risk
7 2, “Higher: ﬂ}ar’t"c:xpeclcd increase in salary will increase the defined benefit obligation.
iS5 PR
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Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
for the year ended March 31, 2021

(Rs. in millions)

33 Contingent liabilities not provided for in the accounts:

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts
Sales tax/ VAT related matters (refer note i, ii, ii) 655.15 ' 655.15
Goods and Services tax related matter (refer note v) 74.93 -
730.08 655.15

i

iii

The Company had preferred an appeal before the Maharashtra Sales Tax Tribunal against a demand of Rs 2.41
million (Previous Year: 2.41 million) against the appeal order passed by the Joint Commissioner of Sales Tax
(Appeal) II Mumbai on account of disallowance of resale of toys and cheese and taxability of Birthday Party Income
for the year 2003-04. The Maharashtra Sales Tax Tribunal has partly allowed the appeal in case of Birthday party
income and dismissed the claim of resale sale. The Company has filed Rectification Application before the
Maharashtra Sales Tax Tribunal, Mumbai following apparent errors made in the judgment.

Secondly. the Company has preferred an appeal before Joint Commissioner of Sales Tax (Appeal) 11 Mumbai against
demand of Rs. 1.64 million (Previous Year Rs. 1.64 million) as per order passed by assessing officer on account of
disallowance of resale of toys and cheese and taxability of Birthday Party Income for the year 2004-05. The appeal
is pending before the Joint Commissioner of Sales Tax. The Company has deposited an aggregate amount of Rs.
1.53 million as part payment as directed by the said authorities for both the years.

During the financial year 2013-14, the Company had received demand notices aggregating to Rs. 97.39 million for
the years 2008-09 to 2012-13 issued by the Assistant Commissioner of Commercial Taxes, Tamil Nadu towards
Tamil Nadu Value Added Tax. The Company had filed an appeal before the Appellate Deputy Commissioner against
the aforesaid demand and had paid Rs. 97.39 million under protest. During the previous years, the Appellate Deputy
Commissioner has dismissed the appeal against by the Company and the Company had filed an appeal before
Tribunal against the order of Appellate Deputy Commissioner. Based on the advice of external counsel, the Company
believes it has good ground for the appeal to be decided in its favour. Accordingly, no provision is considered
necessary in this matter.

During the year 2013-14, the Company had received demand notices of Rs. 553.71 million for the period December,
2008 to October, 2013 from the Deputy Commissioner of Commercial Taxes, Karnataka alleging that the Company
had obtained capital goods from other states, and therefore is ineligible to avail of the benefits of lower rate of tax
under the composition scheme contemplated under the Karnataka Value Added Tax Act. 2003. In respect of the
various notices, the Company had filed two writ petitions before the High Court of Karnataka. Upon hearing, both
petitions were admitted and the Court granted an interim stay on the operation of all the notices and on the order
passed for the FY 2012-13 and any proceedings in connection therewith. The said writ petitions came to be disposed
of by a single judge of the Hon’ble High Court of Karnataka wherein the interim stay granted by the High Court
earlier was vacated and with a direction to the petitioner to approach the respective Appellate authoritics as
mandated under the provisions of the Karnataka Value Added Tax Act. 2003. The Company accordingly preferred an
appeal before the Joint Commissioner of Commercial Tax, Appeals-1 against the Order passed for the financial year
2012-13 after fulfilling the mandatory condition of depositing 30% of the total demand of Rs.189.72 million i.e. an
amount of Rs.19.41 million was deposited after considering the deposit of Rs. 37.50 million made earlier. Thereafter.
the Company also preferred a writ appeal before the Division Bench of the High Court inter alia seeking stay on
operation of the various notices/order issued by the Deputy Commissioner of Commercial Taxes. Karnataka. The
High Court granted an interim stay on operation of the various notices/order conditional upon deposit of 30% of the
amount demanded. The Company has deposited a total sum of Rs. 56.91 million. Pending disposal of the writ appeal
and based on the advice of external counsel, the Company believes that it has good grounds for quashing of the
impugnﬁd‘,néiiceﬁf%fétqg‘.‘ Accordingly, no provision is considered necessary in this matter.

e L
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33

Contingent Liabilities not provided for in the accounts: (Continued)

iv. The proposed Social Security Code. 2019, when promulgated. would subsume labour laws including Employees'

Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act and amend the definition of wages on which the organisation and
its employees are to contribute towards Provident Fund. The Company believes that there will be no significant
impact on its contributions to Provident Fund due to the proposed amendments. Additionally. there is uncertainty
and ambiguity in interpreting and giving effect to the guidelines of Hon. Supreme Court vide its ruling in February
2019, in relation to the scope of compensation on which the organisation and its employees are to contribute towards
Provident Fund. The Company will evaluate its position and act. as clarity emerges.

The Company had received notice for intimation of investigation under Rule 129 of the Central Goods and Services
Tax Rules, 2017 from the Directorate General of Anti-Profiteering (DGAP). The subject-matter of the investigation
was after the rate of GST on the services provided by the Company was reduced with effect from 15.11.2017,
whether the Company passed on the benefit of such reduction to the recipients of services in terms of section 171 of
Central Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017. The said investigation is for the period of 15th November 2017 to 31st
January 2018. The Company had objected to the invocation of anti-profiteering provisions under the GST statute on
both constitutional grounds and factual grounds, only some of which are listed below:

The constitutional grounds:

I. Section 171 and the related delegated legislation is in abrogation of Article 14 of the Constitution of India as it
does not lay down any guidance for the NAA for exercise of statutory power and that sub-delegation to NAA to
notify procedure and methodology is patently bad in law.

2. The statutory scheme is without constitutional sanclion as it is a price control legislation and therefore, not
considering costs other tax patently offends Article 19(1)(g) of the Constitution of India.

3. Tho oompovition of the MAA in bad in law and violates Auticle 14 of the Constitutivn ol Tudia.
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Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
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33

Contingent Liabilities not provided for in the accounts: (Continued)

The factual grounds:

1. The proceedings are bad in law as the period for completion of the investigation was unilaterally enhanced under
Rule 129 sans an opportunity of hearing to the Company and constitutes a violation of the principles of natural
justice.

2. The impugned order has been passed by the NAA after the time period as contemplated under Rule 133 and hence
proceedings are bad in law.

3. No methodology being notified under Rule 126 (either general or specific as raised by the Company) greatly
prejudices the Company as an effective defence cannot be mounted since the relevant law is unknown, rending the
proceedings as opaque and manifestly arbitrary. This is further evident as different standards have been followed for
similarly-placed businesses.

4. In the absence of a specified methodology. all possible manners of computation are equally valid. and preference
cannot be granted to one over the other. The Company has shown through three different means of computation that

the cost of ITC is 10% - 12.24% while the average incremental revenue is 9.43%. Therefore, the only possible
conclusion is that the Company has not indulged in profiteering, but rather passed on benefits more than what was

- required under law. If one is to follow the methodology as held by the NAA. the cost of ITC on aerated beverages is

40%. but price increase can only be 9.11%. This is absurd, patently illogical and unsustainable in law.

5. The entire proceedings are illegal as the scope of the investigation is different in the reference by the Standing
Committee and the Directorate General of Anti-Profiteering (*DGAP™). Hence. the investigation is illegal as

jurisdiction of DGAP is based on reference of Standing Committee only.

6. The order traverses beyond the scope of Section 171. Under this provision, only benefit to the extent of tax can be
demanded and nothing in excess thereof. Further, such amount can only be demanded from a registered person.
which in the present case is the GSTIN of the Company in Maharashtra. Both these principles have been ignored
entirely in the order rendering the entire exercise illegal

The National Anti-Profiteering Authority (NAA) had heard the Company on the above grounds, and had not
accepted the contentions of the Company, and passed an order as follows:

(i) confirmed the demand of Rs. 74.93 million,
(i) given direction to the Company reduce prices for the subsequent perind.

The said order has been challenged by way of a writ petition no. 469 of 2021 filed with the High Court of Bombay.
In the first hearing before the High Court of Bombay., liberty had been granted to the Company to approach the court
if the situation so arises. and matter has been adjourned. Pending disposal of the writ petition and based on the
advice of external counsel, the Company believes that Company has a very good case on both law and facts.
Accordingly. no provision is considered necessary in this matter.

14th Floor,
Central B Wing and
N
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Contingent Liabilities not provided for in the accounts: (Continued)

Notes
i) Pending resolution of the respective proceedings, it is not practicable for the Company to estimate the timings of cash
outflows, if any. in respect of the above as it is determinable only on receipt of judgements / decisions pending with

various forums / authorities.

ii) The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where
provisions are required and disclosed as contingent liabilities where applicable, in its financial statements. The
Company does not expect the outcome of these proceedings to have a materially adverse effect on its financial
position. The Company does not expect any reimbursements in respect of the above contingent liabilities.

iii) The Company has a process whereby periodically all long-term contracts are assessed for material foreseeable losses.
At the yearend. the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

iv) Regarding the amounts disclosed above, it is not practicable to disclose information on the possibility of any
reimbursements as it is determinable only on the occurrence of uncertain future events.

Capital and other commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (net of advances) and not provided for is Rs.
157.53 million (March 31, 2020: Rs. 87.82 million).

Service tax on conducting charges

The Company had, in accordance with legal advice, filed a petition before the Bombay High Court challenging the
amendment in law pertaining to levy of service tax on renting of immavahle praperty retraspectively fram Tine 12007
The Hon’ble High Court dismissed the petition and upheld the constitutional validity of the amendment.

Against the Judgement, the Retailers Association of India (RAI) (of which the Company is a member) had, on behalf of
its members, preferred an appeal in the Hon’ble Supreme Court of India (SCI). The said appeal is pending for disposal by
the SCI. However, by an order (“the Order™), the SCI issued, inter alia, the following directions:

1) All members of RAI to deposit 50% of the arrears due for the period 1st June. 2007 through 30th September, 2011
with the concerned department in three equated instalments on or before 1st November. 2011, 1st January, 2012 and

Ist March. 2012;

2) For the balance 50% of the arrears. all the members of RAI are:

(a) To file solvent surety to the satisfaction of the jurisdictional Commissioners;
(b) To file affidavits in the SCI. within four weeks from the date of the Order. undertaking to pay the balance arrears
of service tax. stayed in terms of the Order. as may be directed by the SCI at the time of final disposal of the appeal:

3) The successful party in the appeal to be entitled to interest on the amount stayed by the SCI at such rate as may be
directed by the SCI at the time of final disposal of the appeal.

For the service tax due from Ist October, 2011, no relief in terms of injunction was granted by the SCI.
In respect of above SCI directions, the Company had deposited 50% of the disputed amount and for the balance 50%
provided solvent surety. The amount under dispute has been fully provided in books.

The Company has commenced payment of service tax with effect from 1st October. 2011 to those parties to whom

; S - Cﬂmﬁan) has contractually agreed to pay service tax.
7 _ldtn S
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39

Un-hedged foreign currency exposure

Un-hedged foreign currency exposure as at Balance Sheet date

[Particulars As at
March 31, 2021

Advances receivable in cash or kind

As at
March 31, 2020|

201 (0.03 USD mullion
@ Rs75.38 )

Segment reporting:

There is no separate reportable segment as per Ind AS 108 on 'Operating Segments’ in respect of the Company.

The Company operates in single segment only. There are no operations outside India and hence there is no external revenue or assets

which require disclosure.

No revenue from transactions with a single external customer amounted to 10% or more of the Company's total revenue in year ended 31

March 2021 or 31 March 2020 .

Details of dues to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined under MSMED Act, 2006:

Particulars

Principal amount and the interest due thereon (to be shown separately) remaining
unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year:

- Principal

- Interest

Amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16, of the Micro Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 along with amounts of payment made to
supplier beyond the appointed day during accounting year.

Arnount of interest due and payahle for the peroad of delay in making payment (which
have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the
Interest specified under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,
2UUb.

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting
yeat.

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding
years, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small
cnterprisc for the puipuse ol disalluwaniee as a deductible eapenditure under section
23 of the MSMFED Act 2006,

March 31, 2021

64.66
1.87

March 31, 2020

* Based on confirmation / information available with the Company

Employee Stock Option Scheme

a) Westlife Development Limited ("WDL’ or the ‘Holding Company’) has established an employee stock option scheme (‘the Scheme’)
which covers certain eligible employees of the Company. During the vear ended March 31, 2021, an employee stock option plan

(ESOP) was in existence. The relevant details of the scheme and the grant are as below.

On September 18, 2013, the board of directors of WDL, approved the Equity Settled ESOP Scheme 2013 (Scheme 2013) for issue of
stock options to the key employees and directors of the Company. According to the Scheme 2013, the employees selected by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee from time to time would be entitled to options, subject to satisfaction of the prescribed
vesting conditions. The contractual life (comprising the vesting period and the exercise period) of options granted is 9 years. The

other relevant terms of the grant are as below:

Vesting period Graded vesting — 20% every year (granted upto 2013)
Graded vesting — 25% every year (granted post 2013)

Exercise period 9 years
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39 Employee Stock Option Scheme (Continued)

b) The details of the activity under the scheme are as

Vesting period

OQutstanding at the beginning of the year
Granted during the year

Forfeited during the year

Exercised during the year

Expired during the year

Outstanding at the end of the year
Exercisable at the end of the year

March 31, 2021
No of Options Weighted average
exercise price (Rs)

522,480 211.83
65,000 345.57
46,750 230.48

134,200 21447

406,530 230.43

299,530 204,38

March 31, 2020
No of Options Weighted average
exercise price
(Rs)
607,045 20643
19,500 24592
65,065 147.81
522,480 211.83
378,105 200.79

For options exercised during the year, the weighted average share price at the exercise date was Rs. 402.87 per share (March 31,

2020: Rs 392.98 per share).

The weighted average remaining contractual life for the stock options outstanding as at March 31, 2021 is 3.86 years (March 31,
2020: 4.66 years). The range of exercise prices for options outstanding at the end of the year was Rs. 100 to Rs. 400 (March 31, 2020:

Rs. 100 to Rs. 300),

¢) Effect of employee share based payment plans on the statement of profit and loss and on its financial position.

Particulars

Total employee compensation cost pertaining to share
option plans (including taxes)

March 31, 2020
8.63

March 31, 2021
6.42

Thu hulding vompany manouren the sast of CEOM using the fair value molliod wid icuuveis tis sount Lo e Company and s
fair value is taken to equity WDL has recovered Rs, 6.42 million (inclusive of taxes) (March 31, 2020 Rs. 8.63 million (inclusive of
taxes)) lhoni the Company wwards compensation cost pertaining o the share based payment. |he ESUP cost 1s included in Note 23

Employee Benefits Expense™ .

d) Ihe tair valuee we meusured bused on the Bluele Scholes formula. Cxpeeted volatility, an fnput I this formala, is cstimated by
considering historic average share price volatility. The inputs used in the measurement of grant-date fair values are as follows:

Particulars

Weighted average fair value (Rs)
Dividend vield (%)

Expected volatility (%)

Lol eg wtors ot suty (1)

Weighted average share price (Rs)
Exercise Price (Rs)

Expccted life ﬂfupliuu:‘ BIII!HHI! in yeny

March 31, 2021 March 31. 2020
164.23 15151
0% 0%
40.75% 54 49%
VAT (e
346 238
346 238
5.64 5.76

e) Options granted but not eligible for exercise at end of the year is 107,000 (March 31, 2020: 144,375)




Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
for the year ended March 31, 2021

(Rs. in millions)

40

41

42

Earnings per share

(Loss) attributable to equity shareholders (basic and diluted)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

(Loss) for the year attributable to equity holders (990.22) (70.46)

Number of equity shares at the beginning of the vear (refer note 1,747,628 1,747,628

13)

Add : Weighted average number of equity shares issued during - =

Number of equity shares considered for calculation of basic and 1,747,628 1,747,628

diluted earning per share

Eamings per share (Rs.)

- Basic and Diluted (566.61) (40.32)

Note: No dilutive shares outstanding as at balance sheet date

Going Concern

For the year ended March 31, 2021 the Company has incurred a net loss of Rs. 990.22 million, however the Company has generated net
cash from operating activities of Rs. 1,291.54 million. As on March 31, 2021 the Company had cash and cash equivalents of Rs. 95.09
million and investments of Rs. 1,890.43 million, however the borrowings of the Company was at Rs. 2,151.83 million. The Company has
established an ongoing source of revenue through its various business models including delivery and take away to cover its operating costs
and fund its working capital requirements. The management believes the current available funding will be sufficient to finance the
Company's operations. The financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of these uncertainties.

COVID-19

The current financial year was a year of COVID-19 pandemic that bought economies, businesses and lives around the world to a standstill,
and the Company was no exception. India witnessed high number of cases and strict restrictions during first half of the year with gradual
release of restrictions in the second half of the year driven by drop in number of positive cases and increased awareness in people to take
precautions. At the same time, starting January 2021, the Government launched its vaccination drive and gradually accelerated it across
India which helped in positive consumer sentiment.

The Company witnessed softer revenues due to lockdown imposed during the first six months of the year during which period the
restaurants were operated with limited capacity. With the unlocking of restrictions during the latter half of the year, all the Company’s
restaurants were re-opened and the Company’s business had improved across western and southern regions of the country. The Company
adopted adequate safety measures in re-opening of its restaurants, in compliance with the directives issued by the authorities for opening
of and permitting dine-in in restaurants, in a phased manner. The Company’s priorities have been to serve safe and hygienic food to its
customers with focus on convenience and recovery of dine-in.

The Company believes that it is much better placed, both operationally and financially to navigate and handle the crisis resulting from the
second wave of COVID-19 that started towards the end of the quarter ended 31 March 2021. Considering this unprecedented and ever
evolving situation, the Company has considered the possible impact of COVID-19 pandemic in the preparation of these financial
statements including the assessment of going concern and recoverability of assets. Given the uncertainties associated with the nature,
condition and duration of COVID -19 pandemic, the impact assessment on the Company's financial statements will be continuously made
and provided for as required.




Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
for the year ended March 31, 2021

(Rs. in nullions)
43 Disclosure on Ind-AS 116
Leases

Company as lessee

The Company’s leased assets primarily consist of Stores, Office premises, Leasehold Land and Godowns. Leases of office premises and
stores generally have lease term between 10 to 30 years. The Company has applied low value exemption for office equipments and
accordingly these are excluded from Ind AS 116. The leases include non cancellable periods and renewable option at the discretion of

lessee for determination of lease term where the Company is certain to exercise such option.

1) Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the period:

Category of ROU asset Buildings| | Leasehold Land Total

As at Ist April, 2019 7,226.66 7.62 7,234.28

Additions 1,033.88 - 1.033.88

Termination (28.38) - (28.38)
Depreciation expenses (517.96) (0.18) (518.14)
As at March 31, 2020 7,714.20 7.44 7,721.64

Category of ROU asset Buildings|| Leasehold Land Total

As at Ist April, 2020 7,714.20 7.44 7,721.64

Additions 260.70 - 260.70

Modification (27.49) - (27.49)
Termination (417.59) - (417.59)
Depreciation expenses (528.65) 0.17) (528.82)
As at March 31, 2021 7,001.17 7.27 7,008.44

ii) Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the period;

Partienlars Asat
March 31
As at April 1, 2019 6,997.36
Additions 942.70
Termination (29.12)
Accretion of interest 659.65
Payments** (748.49)
As at March 31, 2020 7,822.10
Current 777.83
Non-current 7,044.27
** includes provision of lease rentals of Rs. 11.05 million.
Particulars As at
March 31, 2021
As at April 1, 2020% 7,924.70
Additions 246.15
Lease modification other than rent concession (27.49)
Rent concession (225.98)
Termination (421.80)
Accretion of interest 675.71
Payments (643.18)
As at March 31, 2021 7,528.11
Current 786.39
Non-current 6,741.72

# Inclusive of accrued lease liabilities of Rs 102.60 million classified in trade payables as at March 31, 2020.
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Disclosure on Ind-AS 116 (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

iii) The following are the amounts recognised in profit or loss:

Particulars March 31,2021  March 31, 2020
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 528.82 518.14
Interest expense on lease liabilities 675.71 659.65
Expense relating to short-term leases 34.52 16.00
Expense relating to low value 9.78 22.51
Variable lease payments* 234.78 486.66
Gain on lease modification, concession and termination 240.37 -

* Vanable lease payments not recognised in the related lease liability are expensed as incurred and include rentals based on revenue from stores.

iv) The undiscounted maturity analysis of lease liabilities at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020 is as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Less than one year 779.39 811.04
One to five years 3,312.87 3,330.88
More than five years 11,362.82 12,220.31
Total 15,455.08 16,362.23

Company as lessor

The Comipuaiiy is ai intumcdiale Tessun [un ceildin stuies whiere [o Lius subleased o thiltd partes. 1he Lompany has not transterred
substantially all the risks and rewards relating to the right of use asset of the head lease to the sub-lessee where it is an intermediate lessor
and hence all leases are operating leases.

Rental income on stores given on sub leasc to third partics was Rs. 2.86 million for the year ended March 31, 2021 (March 31, 2020
Rs.13.88 million)

Impact of COVID.19

In response to Covid-19, MCA issued interpretative guidance that provides an option for entities to make a policy election for lease
CUlCEsSIUNS 4s 4 Fesillt of Lovid-1Y. |he amount recogmized m profit or loss for the reporting period to retlect changes in lease payments
that arise from rent concessions to which the lessee has applied the practical expedient is Rs. 225.98 million.

Exceptional Items

The Company is in QSR business and inventory includes food items which are perishable in nature with @ short shelf life. Based on the
current prevailing situation of COVID-19 and continuous lock down at the end of March 31, 2020, the Company expected reduce
demand and lower footfalls. Accordingly, the Company had created a provision of Rs. 166.31 million for food inventory and related
HSEUUL SURITIE T ST e R ERE SUFRERE AR Caipany Tias willon back e, 8 LY inllion as (iese provisions aie no

longer required.

In view of the economic situation emanating from the outbreak of COVID 19 pandemic, the Company has undertaken an exercise of
reviewing its restaurant network with the objective of network optimization and has closed 19 restaurants during the year ended March
31,2021. Pursuant to such closure, the Company has made a provision of Rs. 115.23 million for the year ended March 31,2021 towards
carrying value of property plant and equipment located at the closed restaurants.




Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
far the vear ended March 31, 2021

(Rs i mitlions)
46 Disclosure required under Section 186 (4) of the Companies Act 2013

Included in loans and advances are certain loans the particulars of which are disclosed below as required under Section 186 (4) of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Unsceured Loans

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Sangdatta Lodge, interest free, due on August 20, 2021 11.41 19.28

The loan is provided for financing working capital requirements also refer note 6.

47  The Company has evaluated subsequent events from the balance sheet date through May 13, 2021, the date at which the financial statements
were available to be issued, and determined that there are no jtems 10 report.

48  The disclosures regarding details of specified bank notes held and transacted during the § November 2016 to 30 December 2016 has not
been made in these Standalone Financial Statements since the requirement does not pertain to the financial year ended 31 March 2021.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Hardcastle Restaurant Private Limited
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Memhership No: 100060 DIN: 00016823 DIN: 0009059288
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Pankaj Roongta Dr. Shatadru Sengupta
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